
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 27th June, 2019
          at 2.00 pm. (Drawing Room)

A G E N D A

PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd May, 2019.

3 - 10

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Application for a One Day 'Event' Street Trading Consent 
 

11 - 40

(D) 8.  Applications for Street Collection Permits 
 

41 - 58

(R) 9.  Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences 
 

59 - 68

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Barlow
Biggins
Callister (Chairman)
Gawne
Hall
Maddox
R. McClure
McEwan
Mcleavy
Seward (Vice-Chair)
Wall

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday 19th June, 2019 



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 23rd May, 2019
at 2.00 p.m. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister (Chairman), Seward (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Hall, R. McClure, McLeavy, Maddox and Wall.

Officers Present:- Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Ivor Churcher 
(Commercial Team Leader), Jane Holden (Principal Legal Officer), Sharron Rushton 
(Democratic Services Officer).

Legal Representative:- Paul O’Donnell (Local Authority Retained Solicitor).

1 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gawne and McEwan.

2 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Hall declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 – Approved Vehicle 
Testing Stations (Minute No. 6) as one of the proprietors of a testing station was a 
fellow Conservative Councillor.

Councillor McClure declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 – Approved Vehicle 
Testing Stations (Minute No. 6) as one of the proprietors of a testing station was a 
fellow Conservative Councillor.

Councillor McLeavy declared an interest in Agenda Item No. 9 – Approved Vehicle 
Testing Stations (Minute No. 6) as one of the proprietors of a testing station was a 
fellow Conservative Councillor.

3 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 7th March, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

4 – Street Trading Update and Proposed Conditions

The Public Protection Manager updated Members following the designation of all 
streets within the Borough as consent streets, with regard to the provisions of Part III 
and Schedule 4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 – 
Street Trading (“the Act”). The Council had carried out the required statutory 
consultation and received no objections to the proposed designation of consent 
streets. The designations became operable on 10th May, 2019.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The designations had enabled the Council to create a street trading environment 
which complemented premises-based trading, was sensitive to the needs of 
residents, provided diversity and consumer choice, attracted more people to the 
town, provided entertainment and sought to enhance the character, ambience, street 
scene and safety of local environments. It had also facilitated the potential for 
additional street trading in the Town Centre which aligned with the Councils 
Priorities: 1 - Developing the Local Economy 1, 2 - A Strong and Vibrant Town 
Centre and indirectly, 3 - Closing the Gap on Health Inequalities, by improving social 
interaction and community cohesion. 

Street trading consents had previously been issued subject to a set of standard 
conditions and could be granted for a period not exceeding 12 months. Consents 
were renewable on the expiry of the licensed period, unless a trader ceased to exist 
trading. Upon application in writing to the Council, as required by Paragraph 7 of 
Schedule 4 of the Act, the Council may grant consent if they think fit, and may attach 
such conditions to it as they considered reasonably necessary. 

From 10th May 2019, all streets in the Borough were designated as consent streets. 
With this in mind, the Council now had an opportunity to review the standard 
conditions placed on consents for both mobile and static traders. Historically, a 
number of streets and areas, estates in the Borough were subject to a prohibition 
from street trading and traders were only permitted to trade for 10 minutes in any 
street. That meant the Licensing Regulatory Committee, regularly heard applications, 
where they exercised their powers to grant, vary, alter, amend any approval, 
consent, licence, permission or registration, to remove the 10 minute rule for static 
traders.

The current Consent conditions were attached to the report for information.

Members would be aware that each application was considered on its own merits 
having regard to the following criteria:-

 the application complemented premises-based trading; 
 was sensitive to the needs of residents;
 provided diversity and consumer choice; 
 attracted more people to the town;
 provided entertainment and sought to enhance the character, ambience, 

street scene and safety of local environments; and
 the Council’s Priorities.

In addition, a consultation process with Cumbria Highways, Cumbria Constabulary, 
and the Council’s Planning Department and Public Protection Services (Commercial 
Team), also formed part of the Councils considerations. 

The Council also had regard to the proposed Guidance on the Relevance of 
Convictions when considering whether or not an applicant was fit to be a consent 
holder or continued to hold such a consent. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



The proposed guidance on the relevance of convictions was attached to the report 
for information.

It was proposed, that following approval of the standard conditions, that all 
applications for new static trading locations would be determined by the Committee 
and subsequent renewals be dealt with under delegated powers, subject to there 
being no objections from the consultees, as was the case currently.

The Council needed to be satisfied that those they permit to street trade were safe 
and suitable individuals to hold or continue to hold a consent. The Council had an 
ongoing safeguarding responsibility to all who live, work and visit the Borough, were 
able to do so without the fear that licence/consent holders would take advantage of 
their position. 

It followed that the Council, as the Licensing Authority, had an onerous responsibility. 
In making decisions regarding grant and renewal of a licence or consent it was, in 
effect, holding out the individual as someone who was safe and could be trusted. 
Crucially, that was not a field in which the Licensing Authority had to strike a fair 
balance between the individual’s right to work and the public’s right to protection. 
The public were entitled to be protected, full stop. That meant that the Licensing 
Authority was entitled and bound to treat the safety of the public as the paramount 
consideration.

The guidance document was an abridged version of that used to assess the fitness 
of an individual who was an applicant for or holder of a licence to drive a taxi. It had 
been amended to apply to potential and existing street trading consent holders. 
However, it was important to note that every application must be treated on its own 
merits, and the contents of the guidance document do not bind the Council, its 
Officers or the Committee.  

The proposed standard conditions for mobile (e.g. ice cream vans) and static street 
traders were attached as appendices to the report. These had been developed from 
the Councils existing standard conditions, reformatted and now also included:-

 an increased number of streets and areas from where trading was permitted 
for mobile traders;

 a duty to report the consent holders criminality in a timely manner; 
 the introduction of a term-time restriction around school premises for mobile 

traders; 
 more detailed conditions for the use of ice cream van chimes, so as to reduce 

annoyance; 
 provisions in relation to waste and refuse disposal;
 the permanent removal of the ‘10 minute rule’; and
 conditions relating to the use of LPG, generators and electrical safety.

There were six Street Trading Consents currently granted; four mobile and two 
static, and these were renewed at different times throughout the year.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



Condition 9 of the current Street Trading Consent states:

9. The Council may amend the terms of this consent by seven days' notice in 
writing to the Trader at the above address. If the Trader wishes, he can 
terminate this consent at the expiry of such seven days' notice and claim a 
refund of the unexpired fee.

Therefore, should Members approve the new conditions, it was proposed that the 
Reporting Officer, would give the required 7 day notice to the current street trading 
consent holders and issue the new conditions accordingly.

RESOLVED:- 

1. To approve the Guidance on the Relevance of Convictions as detailed in 
Appendix 1 of the report;

2. To approve the standard conditions for both mobile and static street trading 
consents as detailed in Appendix 2 and 3 of the report respectively;

3. To instruct the Reporting Officer to give the required 7 day Notice to all current 
street trading consent holders and issue the new conditions accordingly. 

5 – Application for a 1 day Event Street Trading Consent

The Commercial Team Leader reported that an application had been made to the 
Licensing Authority from Dan Niblo, trading as the Red Rum Trailer Bar, for a one 
day Street Training Consent in Barrow Town Centre on 29th June, 2019. A copy of 
the application was attached to the report.

Mr Niblo’s intention was to sell alcoholic refreshments only.

Barrow Borough Council operated a consent scheme for street trading within the 
Borough and this was prohibited without obtaining the consent of the Council.

Mr Niblo had applied to trade for one day only; Saturday 29th June, 2019. That was 
due to the Soapbox Challenge taking place in the town centre.

An application must be made in writing (Paragraph 7(1) Schedule 4 Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”))

A street trading consent shall not be granted:-

(a)  to a person under the age of 17 years; or
(b) for any trading in a highway to which a Control Order under Section 7 of the 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 was in force, other 
than trading to which the control order did not apply.

(4) When granting or renewing a street trading consent the council may attach such 
conditions to it as they considered reasonably necessary.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



The Council had a number of requirements that an applicant had to meet in order to 
street trade in the Borough:-

1) Full risk assessments for:-
a) Setting up and taking down of any stalls/rides; and
b) Management of generators, cables and LPG to be used;

2) PAT testing certificates on all electrical items to be used. If items had been 
failed, proof that failed items have been retested and passed;

3) A location plan and a layout plan of stalls/rides;

4) Basic DBS check for applicant and all persons working in connection with the 
Vehicle/trailer/stall (no older than 30 days at time of application submission);

5) Evidence of Right to Work in the UK;

6) £5 million public liability insurance;

7) The relevant fee;  

8) A list of what the stall would be selling. Food stalls - details of which authority 
then food business was registered with;

9) If alcohol is to be sold, a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) was required. 

A TEN, in the prescribed form, must be received by the Local Authority no later than 
10 working days prior to the event in accordance with Section.100A Licensing Act 
2003 (along with the prescribed fee).

Mr Niblo had provided:-

1. a risk assessment which is attached to the report;
2. a plan of where he intended to trade was attached to the report;
3. evidence of right to work in the UK;
4. He had registered his business with South Lakeland District Council 

(those selling alcohol/drinks were still required to register as a food 
business even if not selling food). 

Basic DBS had been received;
PAT testing certificates had been received;
Public Liability Insurance had been received and had confirmed the increased 
limit to £5M. 

Authorisation to sell alcohol was dealt with under the Licensing Act 2003. If Mr 
Niblo’s Street Trading application was granted, he would be required to submit a 
Temporary Event Notice to the Council no later than 10 working days before the 
event was due to start. Providing there were no representations from statutory 
consultees he would be authorised to sell alcohol.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Mr Niblo had requested to trade until 10pm, however current conditions stated that 
trading must finish by 8pm.

Payment of the fee was upon grant and not at the time of the application.

Paragraph 7(4) of the Act provided that the Council may grant consent if they think 
fit, and may attach such conditions to it as they considered reasonably necessary. 

The recommended conditions were attached to the report for information.

As part of the application procedure the Licensing Authority was required to consult 
with the Local Planning Authority, Trading Standards, Cumbria Constabulary and 
Cumbria Highways.

Mr Niblo had not previously been an applicant, licensee or consent holder. 

On 1st May, 2019, Cumbria Police sent through their comments which were 
appended to the report.

Following this representation contact was made with Mr Niblo who had agreed to 
trade until 6pm only.

Trading Standards replied on 30th April, 2019 and had no objections. 

No response had yet been received from Cumbria Highways or the Local Planning 
Authority.

Mr Niblo had been invited to attend the Licensing Regulatory Committee to make a 
representation in support of his application. Mr Niblo did not attend the Committee 
however a spokesman attended and made a representation on the applicant’s 
behalf.

It was moved by Councillor McClure and seconded by Councillor McLeavy that a 
Street Trading Consent with restricted trading hours until 1800 hours be granted and 
a named vote be taken.

The named vote was recorded as follow:-

Those in favour of the motion 5; namely: Councillors Assouad, Biggins, Hall, R. 
McClure and McLeavy.

Against the motion 5; namely: Councillor Barlow, Callister, Maddox, Seward and 
Wall.

With the Chairman holding the casting vote, the motion was thereupon declared lost, 
and it was

RESOLVED:- That the application for a Street Trading Consent be rejected.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



6 – Approved Vehicle Testing Stations

The Public Protection Manager submitted a report which dealt with the provision of 
the licensed vehicle testing service provided on behalf of the Council, by local MOT 
testing stations and the approval of five testing stations for a period of three years to 
May 2022.

The Council required licensed vehicles to be tested, on initial application, at renewal 
and dependant upon vehicle age, mid-term at 4/6 monthly intervals. Based on the 
number of currently licensed vehicles, this equated to approximately 1100 tests per 
year. The Council did not have facilities to undertake MOT testing and therefore 
were required to appoint testing stations to carry out inspections on its behalf. 
Garages had been last approved in 2015.

On 15th March, 2019 Officers had written to all MOT Stations in the Borough, asking 
them to express an interest in providing the Council’s licensed vehicle testing 
service. Attached as an appendix to the report was the specification document; 
Members attention was drawn to following criteria:-

1. Must be fully approved by the Department of Transport to carry out MOT 
testing including the testing of emissions from petrol, diesel and catalyst 
equipped engines.

2. Must have in their employment at least two persons approved by the 
Department of Transport to carry out the tests.

The garages were also required to state the costs of providing the service; however 
that was not part of the selection criteria. The cost of the test was borne by the 
vehicle proprietor (licensee) and not the Council. 

Only garages that were currently approved MOT stations were invited to express an 
interest.

RESOLVED:- 

1. To approve the following MOT testing stations to provide the Council with a 
licensed vehicle testing service until May 2022:

 B & D Motors, Chatsworth Street, Barrow-in-Furness
 Freelance Mechanics Ltd, Park Road Industrial Estate, Barrow-in-Furness
 Molyneux’s Auto Service, Park Road Industrial Estate, Barrow-in-Furness
 Riflemans Garage, Salthouse Road, Barrow-in-Furness
 Victoria Motors, Schneider Road, Barrow-in-Furness

2. To delegate to the Public Protection Manager, in consultation with the Chair 
and Vice-Chair of the Licensing Regulatory Committee, any future testing 
station approvals that meet the Council’s criteria.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



7 – Appointments on Outside Panels, Working Groups etc.

The Executive Director reported that at the Annual Council meeting on 20th May, 
2019 the allocation of seats in respect of Forums, Panel, Working Groups etc. were 
agreed.  Delegated authority was given to the appropriate Committees to make the 
necessary appointments.

In the case of the Licensing Regulatory Committee this involved the appointment of 
Members to the Taxi/Private Hire Liaison Group.

In accordance with proportionality rules, the notional seat allocations for 2019/2020 
were as follows:-

Taxi/Private Hire Liaison Group – Three Seats (2 Labour: 1 Conservative).

The Executive Director requested nominations to the above Group.

RESOLVED:- To agree the appointments to the Taxi/Private Hire Liaison Group for 
2019/2020 as follows:-

Councillors Callister, Hall and Maddox.

The meeting closed at 3.50 p.m.

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



  Part One

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Licensing Officer

(D)

Title: Application for a 1 day ‘Event’ Street Trading Consent

Summary and Conclusions: 

An application has been received from Nicholas Seed, trading as Beer Truck 
Ltd, for one day street trading in Barrow town centre on 29th June 2019. 

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that members grant the application.

Report

On 13th May 2019, the Licensing Authority received an application from 
Nicholas Seed, trading as Beer Truck Ltd, for one day street trading consent 
in Barrow Town Centre on 29th June 2019. Mr Seed intends to trade from 
10am – 6pm. A copy of the application is attached at Appendix 1.

Mr Seed’s intention is to sell alcoholic refreshments only.

Barrow Borough Council operates a consent scheme for street trading within 
the Borough and this is prohibited without obtaining the consent of the 
Council.

Mr Seed has applied to trade for one day only; Saturday, 29th June 2019. This 
is due to the Soapbox Challenge (https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/) 
taking place in the town centre.

1. Application Procedure

An application must be made in writing (paragraph 7(1) Schedule 4 Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“the Act”)).

A copy of Mr Seed’s application is attached at Appendix 1.

A street trading consent shall not be granted-

(a) to a person under the age of 17 years; or

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/


(b) for any trading in a highway to which a control order under section 7 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 is in 
force, other than trading to which the control order does not apply.

(4) When granting or renewing a street trading consent the council may attach 
such conditions to it as they consider reasonably necessary.

Council Requirements

The Council has a number of requirements that an applicant has to meet in 
order to street trade in the Borough:

1) Full risk assessments for:-
a) Setting up and taking down of any stalls/rides; and
b) Management of generators, cables and LPG to be used

2) PAT testing certificates on all electrical items to be used.  If items have 
been failed, proof that failed items have been retested and passed;

3) A location plan and a layout plan of stalls/rides (if applicable);

4) Basic DBS check for applicant and all persons working in connection 
with the Vehicle/trailer/stall (no older than 30 days at time of application 
submission);

5) Evidence of Right to Work in the UK ;

6) £5 million public liability insurance;

a)      The relevant fee;  

7) List of what the stall will be selling. Food stalls – details of which 
authority then food business is registered with   
                       

8) If alcohol is to be sold, a Temporary Event Notice (“TEN”) is required. 

A  TEN, in the prescribed form, must be received by the Local Authority 
no later than 10 working days prior to the event in accordance with 
s.100A Licensing Act 2003 (along with the prescribed fee).

Supplied information

Mr Seed has provided:-

1. a risk assessment which is attached at Appendix 2;  
2. a plan of where he intends to trade is attached at Appendix 3 (top 

of Portland Walk at its junction with Dalton Road);
3. A photo of Mr Seed’s vehicle is attached at Appendix 4;
4. evidence of right to work in the UK;

Page 12

Agenda Item 7



5. Evidence of employers and public liability insurance;
6. Proof of PAT testing;
7. He has registered his business with Kirklees Council and has a 5 

star hygiene rating (those selling alcohol/drinks are still required to 
register as a food business even if not selling food);

8. Basic Disclosure and Barring Service certificates for those working 
in the vehicle.

Requirements of the Licensing Act 2003

Authorisation to sell alcohol is dealt with under the Licensing Act 2003. On 
13th May 2019, Mr Seed applied for a Temporary Event Notice which has 
been consulted on and acknowledged by the Council. Mr Seed currently holds 
a personal licence.

Procedure for Granting

Payment of the fee is upon grant and not at the time of the application.

Paragraph 7(4) of the Act provides that the Council may grant consent if they 
think fit, and may attach such conditions to it as they consider reasonably 
necessary. 

The conditions are attached at Appendix 5.

2. Representations

As part of the application procedure the Licensing Authority consults with the 
Local Planning Authority, Trading Standards, Cumbria Constabulary and 
Cumbria Highways.

Mr Seed has not previously been an applicant, licensee or consent holder. 

Cumbria Police Response

Cumbria Police replied on 16 May 2019 to say they had no objections.

Trading Standards Response

At the time of writing there has been no response from Trading Standards.

Cumbria Highways and the Local Planning Authority

At the time of writing the report the Council had not received response from 
Cumbria Highways or the Local Planning Authority.

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



Attendance at the Hearing

Mr Seed has been invited to attend the Licensing Regulatory Committee to 
make a representation in support of his application. Mr Seed has provided a 
statement in support of his application which is copied below and attached at 
Appendix 6:

To whom it may concern
With regards to our application to trade at Soap Box Race Barrow
I understand that other applicants have been rejected for this event due 
to the concern that people may consume too much alcohol and as to 
not promote drinking, please be assured as personal license holders 
we are duty bound not to serve people who have consumed to the 
point of a change in behaviour.
Please note we operate many bars at many events/cities and have 
never had any issues, also see attached letter of thanks we have 
received from Manchester City Council with regards to our working 
relationship with them.
Also with regards to competing with local businesses please be 
assured that a well run event with new equipment/traders can only 
benefit the local business community and breathe new life into the high 
street by sparking people’s interest and fetching them back into the 
town which in turn supports the local economy.
I appreciate your consideration of the points raised 

Kind regards
N Seed
Beer Truck ltd

Public Space Protection Order

Members will be required to consider that Barrow Borough Council has 
recently implemented a Public Space Protection Order to address anti-social 
behaviour in the town centre particularly in the proximity to the area applied 
for.  Section 2.4 states:

A person shall stop consuming alcohol or surrender any containers 
(sealed or unsealed) which are reasonably believed to contain alcohol, 
when required to do so by an Authorised Officer.

 
Nothing in the preceding requirement applies to alcohol being 
consumed within premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 or 
S115E of the Highways Act 1980.

3. Criteria

Barrow Borough Council have adopted the below criteria which requires 
consideration when assessing applications. The Reporting Officer has 
tabulated below the criteria and how the application attempts to meet it:

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



Criteria Beer Truck Ltd
The application complements 
premises-based trading

The truck will be on Portland Walk, in 
front of an empty store. The track for 
the Soapbox challenge runs through 
the Town Centre and there is no 
crossing point, so anyone watching 
from the Portland Walk side will not be 
able to cross over towards McDonalds 
and other premises.
The nearest place to purchase alcohol 
would be Cavendish Street.

Sensitive to the needs of residents Location of trade is in the Town 
Centre so unlikely to cause any 
nuisance to local residents. The 
location is front of an empty shop so 
will not infringe on other town centre 
businesses.

Provides diversity and consumer 
choice

The nearest place to purchase alcohol 
with off sales would be Cavendish 
Street. Their intention is to sell craft 
lager.

Attracts more people to the town This application is for the same day as 
the Soapbox challenge, therefore 
there will be more people in the Town 
Centre as a result of this.

Provides entertainment and sought 
to enhance the character,
ambience, street scene and safety 
of local environments

The truck intends to be in front of an 
empty shop. The Soapbox Challenge 
will be in taking place which will be 
providing entertainment for those in 
the centre.

The Council’s Priorities Priority 2 – A strong and vibrant town 
centre community.

4. Options 

Options available to members today are:

a) Grant the street trading consent in accordance with the conditions;

b) Grant the street trading consent in an alternative location in the town 
centre;

c) Reject the application for a street trading consent.

5. Recommendation

It is the Officer’s recommendation that members GRANT the application for a 
street trading consent.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



Reasons for Recommendation

a) Paragraph 7 of Schedule 4 of the Local Government Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 allows the Council to grant consent if it sees fit to 
do so. The Council may impose conditions upon the consent;

b) The consent is for one day only, as part of the Soapbox Challenge 
taking place in Barrow Town centre;

c) Mr Seed has met the application requirements and has submitted his 
application in advance of the event;

d) Cumbria Police have made no objections to the application;

e) A temporary event notice has been submitted to the Council within the 
required timescale; and

f) At the time of writing the report the Council hadn’t received a response 
from Trading Standards, Cumbria Highways or the Local Planning 
Authority.

(i) Legal Implications

The street in question has been designated by the Council as a consent street 
for street trading purposes under Part III and Schedule 4 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.   

Paragraph 7 of Schedule 4 of the Local Government Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act 1982 allows the Council to grant consent if it sees fit to do so.  

Paragraph 7(4) allows the Council to attach such conditions as they consider 
reasonably necessary.

Paragraph 7(10) allows the Council to grant a consent for a period not 
exceeding 12 months.

This application has met the requirements set out in Schedule 4, Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982.

Other than Judicial Review there is no statutory right of appeal against the 
Council’s decision.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has little impact on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 20

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 21

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 22

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 23

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Page 24

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 3



Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 Barrow Borough Council
  

 Licensing Section   
 Barrow Borough Council 
 Town Hall, Duke Street 

 Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria       
                                                                                  LA14 2LD 
                                                                                  Tel: 01229 876543 
                                                                                  Fax 01229 876411 
                                                                                                                              Email: commercial@barrowbc.gov.uk 
                                                                                 www.barrowbc.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

Street Trading Consent    STC«refno» 
 
 

Premises Name and Address 
 
«name» 
«address» 
   

 

Proprietor(s)  
«nadnameA» 
«nadaddr» 
 

Licence Valid from «uwdate3»  Expires   «uwdate2» 
 

Vehicle Registration  «udfield1» 
 

Types of Goods «uwstr1» 
 

Area of Trading  «uwstr2» 
 

GENERAL 
 

 This consent is subject to the provisions of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1982 and the Conditions attached to the consent made under it, and any other relevant 
Acts. 

 The grant of a Street Trading Consent shall not be deemed to give any approval or consent 
which may be needed under any By-law, enactment or regulation other than Part 3, Schedule 
4 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. For the avoidance of doubt, 
this includes the requirement to seek and obtain planning permission  and / or advertisement 
consent.  

 The possession of this document does not guarantee that the consent is in force.  Its validity 
may be established by reference to the Council’s Licensing Office. 

 This consent is not transferable. 
 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

«text» 
 
 

 

     

PUBLIC PROTECTION MANAGER 

Standard Conditions and any Special 
Conditions attached to this consent are 
attached or printed on the reverse. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 6



BARROW-IN-FURNESS BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICES 

TOWN HALL, DUKE STREET 
BARROW-IN-FURNESS, CUMBRIA  LA14 2LD 

 

STANDARD CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO THE ISSUE OF A  
STATIC STREET TRADING CONSENT 

 

CONSENT NO:   «refno» 
 

Consent Holder & Conduct 
 

1. This consent operates from the dates as shown on the attached Consent. 
 

2. The trader must not operate his / her business between 8.00pm and 8.00am the 
following day. 
 

3. It is personal to the Trader and cannot be assigned or sublet. 
 

4. If the Trader or any person employed by him / her are convicted of any offence(s), given 
a formal caution(s) for any offence or have any fixed penalty notice(s) imposed including 
driving offences / penalty points, you shall write to the Council giving full details of the 
offence(s), caution(s) or fixed penalty notice(s) within seven days of the imposition of 
the offence(s), caution(s) or fixed penalty notice(s). 
 

5. If the Trader's vehicle is to be under the control of a person other than the Trader 
personally, the name and address of such person shall be given to the Council, together 
with details of the relationship. 
 

6. Traders and any assistants employed by them shall ensure the public and Council 
officers are treated fairly and with courtesy. Traders shall ensure that their staff are 
competent, courteous and helpful. 
 

7. The Consent Holder or his employees are forbidden to sell, display or wear any article 
which is or is intended to be offensive either in writing or pictures. (If any doubt exists on 
whether an article / material could be considered offensive, please contact Public 
Protection Services (Licensing) on 01229 876543). 

 
Articles 

 

8. Only those goods specified in the Consent may be sold. All commodities must comply 
with current Consumer Protection legislation. (For advice and information contact 
Trading Standards Telephone: 01539 713594 or 
Email: trading.standards@cumbria.gov.uk) 
 

9. All merchandise sold from the  stall / vehicle shall be of a good merchantable quality 
and sold at reasonable prices. The prices of all merchandise and services shall be 
either clearly marked or included on a price list to be displayed in a prominent position 
within the stall / vehicle, visible to customers. The Consent holder shall immediately 
cease selling and remove from display, any merchandise to which the Council shall 
object whether because of the nature of the merchandise, its quality or for any other 
reason. 

 
Trading Stall / Vehicle 
 

10. The registration number(s) of the Trader's vehicle(s) is/are as the attached Consent.  If 
the Trader changes any vehicle, or his address, the new registration number or new 
address shall be endorsed hereon. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 6



 

11. The Trader's name and address shall be stated clearly on the nearside of the vehicle at 
the front and the vehicle shall not be used unless this name and address is the correct 
one for the Trader for the time being. 
 

12. The Trader(s) vehicle(s) shall at all times be available for inspection, and in the case of 
food businesses the Trader shall at all times comply with the relevant food hygiene 
legislation currently The Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 and in 
any event with any legislation affecting the same. 
 

13. The vehicle(s) shall at all times be in a roadworthy condition. 
 
Location 
 

14. The trader shall trade only from the location(s) on the Consent. 
 

Refuse, Waste and Nuisance 
 

15. The trader shall keep the site at all times clean and tidy and free from litter; provide 
adequate facilities for the hygienic storage of refuse, ensure that they do not become 
overfilled and at the end of each trading day and as often as may be necessary during 
the trading day properly dispose of all refuse including cooking oils etc. in an authorised 
manner. The trader shall comply with all requirements of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 with respect to Duty of Care. (For advice and information contact the 
Environment Agency on Telephone: 03708 506 506). 
 

16. The trader shall collect and similarly properly dispose of all wrappings and litter within a 
5 metre radius of the site (and beyond where it is the result of the trader’s activities from 
the site) at the end of each trading day and as often as may be necessary during each 
trading day so as to keep and leave the street in a clean and tidy condition. The trader 
or his assistant shall comply with any directions given by the Council from time to time 
regarding the handling, storage and removal of the refuse. 
 
 

17. No Trader, his vehicle or any person employed by him / her shall cause any avoidable 
nuisance which affects any member of the general public or their right to the peaceful 
enjoyment of their homes or businesses in the vicinity of the trading site and in 
particular shall not use any loudspeaker, whistle, horn, bell or other audible method to 
attract custom. 

 
 

Health & Safety 
 

18. Traders shall ensure that they comply with the requirements of the Health & Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974 and subsequent regulations made under the Act. 
 
The stall / vehicle shall be of sound construction and erected and maintained in a 
condition so as to protect the health and safety of employer, employees and members 
of the public. If freestanding canopies, umbrella or any other portable structures are 
used, they must be erected and maintained in accordance with the manufacturers’ 
instructions. 
 
Guidance on compliance on the safe use, handling, storage and transportation of 
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) used in mobile catering units or similar units can be 
found here: https://www.ncass.org.uk/mobile-catering-home/content/get-legal/law-
pages/gas-safety/gas-safety-in-mobile-catering 
 
Any electrical installation used in conjunction with the street trading unit must comply 
with the Electricity at Work Regulations 1989. Specifically, any appliances used in the 
installation must be subject to regular portable appliance testing, and the installation 

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 6



shall be protected at source, at the main junction or at the generator by a residual 
current device or some other equally suitable means of protection. 
 
Where mobile electrical generators are employed they shall be so positioned that:  
a) they do not present a danger to the passing public;  
b) they do not present a fire or similar hazard risk to the stall or goods displayed 
thereon;  
c) they do not cause any noise or fume nuisance; and 
d) all petroleum spirit or other highly inflammable liquid used in connection with the 
generator shall be stored in a metal container with a secure leak proof cap not 
exceeding 23 litres or a plastic container not exceeding 5 litres capacity. The container 
to be labelled “Petroleum Spirit Highly Inflammable”. The container shall be stored 
securely and remote from sources of ignition. 
 

Directions by the Council and Offences 
 

19. The Council may amend the terms of this consent by seven days' notice in writing to the 
Trader at the above address.  If the Trader wishes, he can terminate this consent at the 
expiry of such seven days' notice and claim a refund of the unexpired fee. 
 

20. This consent may be terminated immediately for breach of any of the conditions, and 
upon any termination (save as in Clause 19) no refund shall be made. 
 

21. The Consent Holder shall comply with all reasonable directions given by the Council or 
by any authorised Officer of the Council regarding any matter to which this Consent 
relates. 
 

22. In the event of any breach or non-compliance with the Street Trading provisions of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 or the terms and conditions of 
this Consent by the Consent Holder (including any person associated with the Consent 
Holder), the Council may immediately revoke the Consent without notice and / or refuse 
to grant further Consents to the individuals concerned. 
 

23. Any person who contravenes a condition imposed under the Consent shall be guilty of 
an offence. (Paragraph 7(9) Schedule 4 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1982. 
 

                                  .  
 
Notes: 
 
A ‘Street’ is defined as:   

 
(a) any road, footway, beach or other area to which the public have access without 
payment; and  
(b) a service area as defined in section 329 of the Highways Act 1980,  

 
and also includes any part of a street; 
 
 
Any reference to a ‘Trader’ above, shall also mean ‘Consent Holder’ 
  
Vehicle shall also mean mobile trailer / trading unit / catering van. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 6



1

Katherine Benson

From: nick seed <seed_nick@yahoo.com>

Sent: 31 May 2019 11:27

To: Katherine Benson

Subject: Beer Truck Covering Letter

To whom it may concern 
With regards to our application to trade at Soap Box Race Barrow 
I understand that other applicants have been rejected for this event due to the concern that people may consume 
too much alcohol and as to not promote drinking, please be assured as personal license holders we are duty bound 
not to serve people who have consumed to the point of a change in behaviour. 
Please note we operate many bars at many events/cities and have never had any issues, also see attached letter of 
thanks we have received from Manchester City Council with regards to our working relationship with them. 
Also with regards to competing with local businesses please be assured that a well run event with new 
equipment/traders can only benefit the local business community and breathe new life into the high street by 
sparking people’s interest and fetching them back into the town which in turn supports the local economy. 
I appreciate your consideration of the points raised  
 
Kind regards 
N Seed 
Beer Truck ltd 
 
 
 
------------------------------------ 
This email has been scanned for spam & viruses. If you believe this email should have been stopped by our filters, 
click the following link to report it 
(https://portal.mailanyone.net/index.html#/outer/reportspam?token=dXNlcj1rYmVuc29uQGJhcnJvd2JjLmdvdi51azt
0cz0xNTU5Mjk4NDU1O3V1aWQ9NUNGMTAxOTdDQjdFMjUyMzMxNEQxM0UyQjJBQ0Q3OTU7dG9rZW49ODE4N2Jj
MmEzNjQzNjRkYmMwNjNmZjdhNmEwMTZjMTViMTliYmViZDs%3D). 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 7

kbenson
Rectangle



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 8



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 27th June, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Licensing Officer

(D)

Title: Applications for Street Collection Permits

Summary and Conclusions: 

Two separate applications have been made to the Licensing Authority for 
street collection permits on behalf of Help for Heroes and St Mary’s Hospice. 
Help for Heroes have requested a street collection permit for a collection 
which will take place on Saturday 29th June 2019, between 10am and 4pm, 
and St Mary’s Hospice have requested a permit for the same date, between 
10am and 5pm.

The Licensing Authority has already granted a street collection permit to 
Barrow Street Angels on this date. Current policy states that once a particular 
date had been allocated to a charity, no further applications from other 
charities for the same date would be permitted. 

The application therefore requires Members to exercise their powers to hear 
applications to vary any limitation or term imposed on a consent, licence or 
permission, in accordance with Minute No. 1.3 (ii) of the current allocation 
Policy for street collections/flag days.

Recommendations: 

It is recommended that members GRANT the applications for street collection 
permits.

1. The Applications

On 23rd May 2019 an application was made to the Licensing Authority for a 
Street Collection permit on Saturday 29th June 2019, by Clare Tonkin on 
behalf of St Mary’s Hospice (attached at Appendix 1).

On 28th May 2019 an application was also made to the Licensing Authority for 
a Street Collection Permit on Saturday 29th June 2019, by Mrs Edith Walker 
on behalf of Help for Heroes (attached at Appendix 2). This Application has 
been made as 29th June 2019 is Armed Forces Day 
(https://www.armedforcesday.org.uk/). Help for Heroes are also doing a store 
collection in Debenhams that day. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

https://www.armedforcesday.org.uk/


Tabulated below are details of both applications and where they intend to 
collect:

Charity Received Applicant 
name

Date of 
collection

Time of 
collection

Location 
of 
collection

St Mary’s 
Hospice 
(Appendix 1)

23rd May 
2019

Clare 
Tonkin

29th June 
2019

10am – 
5pm

Dalton 
Road

Help for 
Heroes 
(Appendix 2)

28th May 
2019

Edith 
Walker

29th June 
2019

10am – 
4pm

Portland 
Walk

The applications were made in accordance with the Council’s Street 
Collection Regulations and within the required timescale of 1 month before 
the proposed date of collection (Appendix 3).  

 
2. Background

The Police, Factories and (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 allows local 
authorities to make regulations regarding the collection of money or selling of 
articles for the benefit of ‘charitable or other purposes’ in a street or public 
place.

The current allocation policy for street collections / flag days was determined 
by Minute No. 150 (1990/91) and Minute No. 80 (1993/94) of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee as follows:-

a) That it be adopted as policy that once a particular date had been 
allocated to a charity, no further application from other charities for 
the same date would be permitted;

b) No organisation would be granted more than one collection date in 
each calendar year;

c) That preference would continue to be given to charities that use 
money collected locally;

d) That no more than 50 street collection permits will be granted in a 
calendar year, such permits to be for collection days either on 
Fridays or Saturdays. No mid-week collections to be allowed;

e) Organisations must comply with the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness 
Street Collection Regulations and submit a statement of accounts 
following their street collection in order for similar applications to be 
considered in future years; and

f) Minute No. 1.3 (ii) resolves to vary current general allocation policy 
to enable the Sub-Committee and/or the Panel to receive 
applications for additional collections in cases of special 
celebrations relevant to individual charities from time to time.

This is Help for Heroes and St Mary’s Hospice first application for a permit this 
calendar year.

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



3. Street Collection Regulations

The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness Street Collection Regulations are 
attached at Appendix 3. All applicants are provided with a copy of the 
regulations and are expected to abide by them at all times during any 
collection. This report also asks Members to consider the following 
Regulations when determining these applications:

5. The licensing authority may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to 
such streets or public places or such parts thereof as it thinks fit.

10. While collecting:

a) A collector shall remain stationary; and
b) A collector or two collectors together shall not be nearer to other 

collector than 25 metres.

4. Representations

The licensing authority consults on all street collection permits with Cumbria 
Constabulary.

At the time of writing this report, there have been no objections from Cumbria 
Constabulary.

The applicants have been invited to attend today’s Licensing Regulatory 
Committee.

5. Options 

The options available to members are;

a) To grant the Street Collection Permits for Saturday, 29th June 2019 
with or without conditions / restrictions specified by the Committee in 
accordance with the Street Collection Regulations; and to give the 
Public Protection Manager delegated authority to accept and grant late 
street collection permits for this date only; or

b) To grant the Street Collection Permits for Saturday, 29th June 2019 
with or without conditions / restrictions specified by the Committee in 
accordance with the Street Collection Regulations; or

c) To refuse to grant the Street Collection Permits.

6. Recommendation and Reasons

It is recommended that members GRANT the Street Collection Permits for 
Saturday 29th June 2019 and give the Public Protection Manager delegated 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



authority to accept and grant late street collection permits for this date only, 
for following reasons:-

1. There are no other street collection permits allocated for Help for 
Heroes or St Mary’s Hospice;

2. Help for Heroes is a nationally recognised charity; and the collection 
is part of Armed Forces Day;

3. St Mary’s Hospice is a very well known local charity, with many local 
people benefitting from the services and support the charity provides;

4. Help for Heroes intend to collect on Portland Walk, and St Mary’s 
Hospice intend to collect on Dalton Road;

5. The Soapbox Challenge (https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/) is 
taking place in the Town Centre on Saturday 29th June 2019, therefore 
footfall in the Town Centre is expected to be higher than usual;

6. To date there are only 13 other street collection permits, allocated 
from a maximum of 50, for 2019; and

7. Members have the delegated authority to vary any limitation or other 
restriction or other terms on any consent, licence or permission.

(i) Legal Implications

A street collection permit is required by any person to collect, in a street or 
public place within the Borough, money for the benefit of charitable or other 
purposes.  

The Council’s Street Collection Regulations (“the Council’s Regulations”) 
made under powers contained in The Police, Factories, (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1916 regulate such collections.  Any person who collects 
money or otherwise acts in contravention of the Council’s Regulations with 
regard to street collection is liable to a fine not exceeding level 1 on the 
standard scale.

There is no statutory right of appeal against the refusal of a street collection 
permit but a licensing authority’s decision could be challenged by application 
to the High Court for a review of the decision (Judicial Review).

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

Page 44

Agenda Item 8

https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/


(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has little impact on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 48

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 49

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 50

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 51

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



Page 52

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



1

Katherine Benson

From: customerservices@barrowbc.gov.uk

Sent: 28 May 2019 08:27

To: Commercial Services

Subject: CRM - Street Collection (Web)

Case Number:   16UC19-SR-7758 
Date:    28-05-2019 08:27 
         
 
Customer Name:   Mrs Edith Walker 
 
Customer Address:  19 Scales Close 
                  
                  
                  
                 Dalton-in-Furness 
                 Cumbria 
                 LA15 8PE 
 
Phone(Home):   463224 
Phone(Work):    
Phone(Mobile):    
 
Email:     
 
Request Details 
--------------- 
 
Name of Charity/Organisation: Help for Heroes 
 
Date of Collection:  29/06/2019 
Time of Collection:  10 am to 4.00 pm 
 
Alternative Date:  29/06/2019 
Alternative Time:  00-00 
 
Area of Collection:  Barrow 
 
Number of Collectors:  3 
 
 
Collector 1 Details 
------------------- 
 
Name:                        Charles Walker 
Date of Birth:   01/11/1949 
 
Address:   19, Scales Close 
    Dalton-in-Furness 
    Cumbria 
    LA15 8PE 
    36029429 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



2

 
 
Collector 2 Details 
------------------- 
 
Name:                        Helen Wall 
Date of Birth:   06/11/1951 
 
Address:   41, Harrogate Street 
    Barrow-in-Furness 
    Cumbria 
    LA14 5NR 
    36018899 
 
 
Other Details 
------------- 
 
Further Details:  Ref: STC69 
Email: e.walker@h4hcounty.org.uk 
Phone: 01229463224 
Comments: I am applying for a permit for collection in Portland Walk only on 29.06.2019 as that is Armed Forces 
Day and Help for Heroes will be doing a store collection in Debenhams that day. 
 

Page 54

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



STREET COLLECTION REGULATIONS 

 
1. In these Regulations, unless the context otherwise requires, “collection”  

means a collection of money or a sale of articles for the benefit of charitable or other 
purposes and the word  
 
“collector” shall be construed accordingly; 
 
“promoter” means a person who causes others to act as collectors; 
 
“the licensing authority” means the Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness; 
 
“permit” means  permit for collection; 
 
“Contributor” means a person who contributes a collection and includes a purchaser of 
articles for sale for the benefit of charitable or other purposes; 
 
“collecting box” means a box or other receptacle for the reception of money from 
contributors. 

 
2. No collection other than a collection taken at a meeting in the open air, shall be made in 

any street or public place within the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness, unless a promoter 
shall have obtained from the licensing authority a permit. 

 
3. Application for a permit shall be made in writing not later than one month before the date 

on which it is proposed to make the collection; provided that the licensing authority may 
reduce the period of one month if satisfied that there are special reasons for so doing. 

 
4. No collection shall be made except upon the day and between the hours stated in the 

permit; 
 
5. The licensing authority may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to such streets or 

public places or such parts thereof as it thinks fit; 
 
6  (i) No person shall assist or take part in any collection without the written authority of 

a promoter.  
 

(ii) Any person authorised under paragraph (i) above shall produce such written 
authority forthwith for inspection on being requested to do so by a duly authorised 
officer of the licensing authority or any constable. 

 
7. No collection shall be made in any part of the carriageway of any street which has a 

footway; provided that the licensing authority may, if it thinks fit, allow a collection to take 
place on the said carriageway where such collection has been authorised to be held in 
connection with a procession. 

 
8. No collection shall be made in a manner likely to inconvenience or annoy any person. 
 
9. No collection shall importune any person to the annoyance of such person. 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3



10. While collecting: 
 

a) A collector shall remain stationary; and 
b) A collector or two collectors together shall not be nearer to other collector than  

25 metres. 
 

Provided that the licensing authority may, if it thinks fit, waive the requirements of this 
Regulation in respect of a collection which has been authorised to be held in connection 
with a procession. 

 
11. No promoter collector or person who is otherwise connected with a collection shall permit 

a person under the age of sixteen years to act as collector. 
 
12. (1) Every collector shall carry a collecting box. 
  

(2) All collecting boxes shall be numbered consecutively and shall  
be securely closed and sealed in such a way as to prevent them being opened 
without the seal being broken. 

 
(3) All money received by a collector from contributors shall immediately be placed in 

a collecting box. 
 
(4) Every collector shall deliver, unopened, all collecting boxes in his possession to a 

promoter. 
 
13. A collector shall not carry or use any collecting box, receptable or tray which does not 

bear displayed prominently thereon the name of the charity or fund which is to benefit, 
nor any collecting box which is not duly numbered. 

14.     (1) Subject to paragraph (2) below a collecting box shall be opened in the presence    
of a promoter and another responsible person. 

(2) Where a collecting box is delivered, unopened, to a bank it may be opened by an 
official of the bank. 

(3) As soon as a collecting box has been opened, the person opening it shall count 
the contents and shall enter the amount with the number of the collecting box on a 
list which shall be certified by that person. 

15. (1) No payment shall be made to any collector. 

(2) No payment shall be made out of the proceeds of a collection, either directly or 
indirectly, to any person connected with the promotion or conduct of such 
collection for, or in respect of, services connected therewith, except such 
payments as may have been approved by licensing authority. 

16.     (1) Within one month after the date of any collection the person to whom a permit has 
been granted shall forward to the licensing authority:- 

(a) a statement in the form set out in the Schedule to these Regulations, or in 
a form to the like effect, showing the amount received and the expenses 
and payments incurred in connection with such collection, and certified by 
that person and a qualified accountant; 

(b) a list of the collectors; 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3



(c) a list of the amounts contained in each collecting box; 

 and shall, if required by the licensing authority, satisfy it as to the proper application of 
 the proceeds of the collection. 

(2) The said person shall also, within the same period, at the expense of that person 
and after a qualified accountant has given his certificate under paragraph (1)(a) 
above, publish in such newspaper or newspapers as the licensing authority may 
direct a statement showing the name of the person to whom the permit has been 
granted, the area to which the permit relates, the name of the charity or fund to 
benefit, the date of the collection, the amount collected, and the amount of the 
expenses and payments incurred in connection with such collection. 

(3) The licensing authority may, if satisfied there are special reasons for doing so, 
extend the period of one month referred to in paragraph (1) above. 

(4) For the purposes of this Regulation “a qualified accountant” means a member of 
one or more of the following bodies:- 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland; 

The Association of Certified Accountants; 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland. 

17. These regulations shall not apply:- 

(a) in respect of a collection taken at a meeting in the open air; or 

(b) to the selling of articles in any street or public place when the articles are sold in 
the ordinary course of trade. 

18. Any person who acts in contravention of any of the foregoing regulations shall be liable 
on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £2.00 or in the case of a second or 
subsequent offence not exceeding £5.00. 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



          Part One

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting:       27th June, 2019 

Reporting Officer:    Public Protection Manager

(R)

Title: Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report informs Members of the statutory provisions relating to the issue of 
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences. 

Recommendations: 

Members are asked to use their delegation to amend any restriction or limitation and:

1. Remove the current restriction of 120 hackney vehicle licences; and 

2. Apply a condition to all new hackney carriage vehicle licences issued, requiring 
that the vehicle must be at all times a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle.

1. Report

Historically, the number of Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences has been capped by 
the Licensing Authority and Members consider this issue every three years. In 
November 2015, Members recommended to the Executive Committee that they 
approve the Quantity Control Policy on the maximum limit of hackney carriage 
vehicles which at that time was a  maximum limit of 120 Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Licences, albeit that 142 licences where in operation. This was approved at full 
Council in March 2016. Currently there are 135 hackney carriage vehicle licensed.

During the intervening period, Members may be aware that considerable work has 
been undertaken to improve the provision of Hackney Carriage Stands (‘Taxi Ranks’) 
in the Borough. Full Council approved the Taxi Rank provision on 1st March 2018 
(Minute No: 63(5)). This included formalising the rank in Cavendish Street and the 
introduction of new ranks in the Town Centre. 

Tri-annually, an unmet demand survey is commissioned and undertaken, by an 
independent 3rd party, to assess the Hackney Carriage (Taxi) provision in the 
Borough. This was due to be carried out in 2018, however with the introduction of 
new taxi ranks, Officers considered delaying until the taxi ranks had had time to 
establish themselves, before such a survey could be considered necessary.

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



This report details proposals for increasing the number of hackney carriage licences 
for wheelchair accessible vehicles only and asks Members to consider whether the 
local authority should carry out a pilot study of the hackney provision.  

2. Legislation 

The present legal provision on quantity restrictions for taxis (Hackney Carriages) 
outside London is set out in section 16 of the Transport Act 1985. This provides that 
the grant of a taxi licence may be refused, for the purpose of limiting the number of 
licensed taxis ‘if, but only if,  the person authorised to grant licences is satisfied that 
there is no significant demand for the services of hackney carriages (within the area 
to which the licence would apply) which is unmet’

Decisions to refuse hackney carriage vehicle licences, are subject to the right of 
appeal to the Crown Court. 

Section 47of the Local Government (Misc. Provisions) Act 1976, states:

(1) A district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage 
under the Act of 1847 such conditions as the district council may consider 
reasonably necessary.
(2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, a district council 
may require any hackney carriage licensed by them under the Act of 1847 to be of 
such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks as shall clearly 
identify it as a hackney carriage.

Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to such a licence may appeal to a 
magistrates’ court.

3. Government Guidance 

In 2003, the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) conducted a market study into taxi licensing 
regulation. They concluded that where quantity restrictions are maintained by local 
authorities, it limits the availability of taxis, lowers the quality of service and such 
restrictions should be lifted. Removal of quantity restrictions is known as 
‘delimitation’.

In 2004 the government said that it agreed with the OFT's analysis but local council's 
should be left to decide what is appropriate. It promised to review progress in three 
years' time and if needed, explore legislative options. The National Consumer 
Council also urges those local authorities who currently maintain quantity controls to 
abandon them.

In 2006, guidance issued to licensing authorities by the Department for Transport 
(DfT) made clear, that removing quantity controls is best practice and that policy in 
this area should be decided in terms of the interests of the travelling public.

Members will be aware that the Department of Transport (DfT) recommends that all 
local authorities operating a cap or quantity control policy for hackney carriage 
vehicle licences must review this policy and publish the outcome (DfT 2010 Best 
Practice Guidance). To retain such a policy the Office of Fair Trading recommends 
Licensing Authorities to undertake a survey every three years to justify the limit or 
cap.

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



Additionally, DfT has suggested that any limitation should be approached in terms of 
the interests of the travelling public – those who use taxi services: 

 What benefits or disadvantages arise for them as a result of the continuation 
of controls; 

 What benefits or disadvantages would result for the public if the controls were 
removed; and 

 Is there evidence that removal of the controls would result in a deterioration in 
the amount or quality of taxi service provision.

On the 23rd May 2014, the Law Commission published its report on taxi law reform 
and stated: ‘We do not regard the current statutory criterion of “unmet demand” as 
appropriate and instead suggest a test based on the public interest, combined with 
procedural requirements such as a review every three years and a duty to consult.’

Most recently, on the 12th July 2017 the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) 
published guidance on: Regulation of taxis and private hire vehicles: understanding 
the impact on competition. 

The two tier system

Taxis’ right to ply for hire necessitates different regulation for taxis and PHVs. 
Passengers are in a weak position to judge the quality or to compare prices of 
taxis; it is therefore necessary to regulate taxi fares (and service standards).

The scope for competition between taxis and PHVs, increasing with the 
emergence of app-based models, can deliver benefits for passengers. To facilitate 
this, regulatory distinctions between taxis and PHVs should not go beyond what is 
required by legislation or necessary to protect passengers.

Hackney carriages

There is a need to regulate the prices and service standards of taxis, owing to their 
unique right to ply for hire. There is also a need, as with the private hire trade, to 
ensure the safety of passengers.

Quantity restrictions are not necessary to ensure the safety of passengers, or to 
ensure that fares are reasonable. However, they can harm passengers by 
reducing availability, increasing waiting times, and reducing the scope for 
downward competitive pressure on fares.

The CMA takes the view that concerns around congestion, air pollution and 
enforcement costs can generally be addressed through measures less harmful to 
passengers’ interests than quantity restrictions.

If the removal of quantity restrictions leads to increased waiting times for taxi 
drivers between journeys, this indicates that price competition which would benefit 
passengers is not occurring. Licensing authorities should monitor waiting times 
and consider adjusting the regulated fare cap to address mismatches between 
supply and demand. Addressing such mismatches is likely to benefit passengers.

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



4. Licensing Law & Practice 

Below is an extract from Button on Taxis: Licensing Law and Practice (4th Ed. 
Bloomsbury Professional, 2018). The author, James Button, is a leading lawyer in the 
field of taxi licensing and President of the Institute of Licensing.

The rationale behind the introduction of the Transport Act 1985, s.16 was that local 
authorities would no longer be able to control the numbers of hackney carriages. 
However it has not worked out like that in many parts of the country and some 
25% of local authorities still limit the number of hackney carriages that they 
licence.

The litigation in this area has been considerable.  This is understandable, as many 
persons’ livelihoods are at stake.  In areas where a limitation on hackney carriage 
numbers is maintained, hackney carriage proprietor’s licences acquire a 
considerable value.  As with any market, these values fluctuate according to 
demand and that demand varies between local authority areas and also in 
response to other factors.  The market value for hackney carriage proprietor’s 
licences ranges from around £2,000 to upwards of £50,000, with the current 
highest value being £80,000(1).  It should be noted that the local authority is not 
party in determining the values of proprietor’s licences. Obviously, if someone has 
invested considerable sums to purchase such a licence, they will be loath to see 
that value wiped out by a decision by the local authority to delimit numbers.  On 
the other hand, many local authorities take the view that limiting hackney carriage 
numbers is an unacceptable form of protectionism, which does not provide the 
travelling public with the best service. [Anecdotally, in our Borough the market 
value is around £800 plus the cost of the vehicle.]
(1) Oxford City Council as at April 2008 – source www.taxidriver.co.uk.

An unregulated ‘free-for-all” in the provision of hackney carriage services would 
not be acceptable.  However, as mentioned above, if number restrictions are 
removed, but quality control provisions remain in place, the market will find the 
level for the number of hackney carriages which an area can sustain.

It is often argued that delimitation will lead to congestion and unacceptably high 
numbers of hackney carriages plying and ranking within the local authority area.  
Such vast increases appears to be rare among those authorities which have 
delimited numbers, especially bearing in mind the capital outlay which is required 
to invest in a suitable vehicle on the part of a potential proprietor.  When this is 
offset against the uncertainty of the rewards which a hackney carriage proprietor’s 
licence is likely to return, it is understandable why the threatened exponential rise 
in hackney carriage numbers in many areas has not been experienced.  In 
addition, in areas where delimitation has taken place, some private hire vehicles 
licensees surrender their licence and apply for a hackney carriage licence instead 
(obviously, subject to provision of a suitable vehicle), again reducing the potential 
for a huge increase in hackney carriage numbers.

The argument in relation to overcrowding and congestion are also difficult to 
translate into reality.  Even if a local authority experienced an increase in hackney 
carriage numbers of some two or three hundred vehicles, in terms of the actual 
traffic flow in most town centres that would represent a very small percentage 
increase.

Page 62

Agenda Item 9

http://www.taxidriver.co.uk/


It is undoubtedly true that an increase in hackney carriage numbers can lead to 
additional pressure on hackney carriage stands, but there appear to be only a 
handful of local authorities in England and Wales which are able to provide stands 
for all their hackney carriages.  This is notwithstanding the requirement contained 
in byelaw 7 of the model byelaws, [adopted by Barrow Borough Council in 1974] 
which require the driver of a hackney carriage, when plying for hire and not 
actually hired, to:

(a) proceed with reasonable speed to one of the stands appointed by the 
Council;
(b) if a stand, at the time of his arrival, is occupied by the full number of 
carriages authorised to occupy it, proceed to another stand.

Realistically, it must always be expected that some vehicles will be unable to rank 
at any given time as they will be plying for hire, undertaking hire or simply not 
working at that particular time.

Provided that a local authority maintains quality controls, delimitation should not be 
a problem for hackney carriage services. 

5. Officers Report

As new taxi ranks have been formalised last year and with the recent increase in 
contractors within the construction industry and at BAE Systems, potentially providing 
an increase in demand, it is now opportune that an assessment of the taxi provision 
as a whole, is undertaken. This will enable the Council to determine whether or not 
the local authority should consider delimitation, as recommended in government 
guidance or continue to restrict the number of hackney carriages and engage the 
services of an independent consultancy.

The impact on the taxi trade (Hackney Carriage proprietors and drivers) 

There are arguments for both restriction and delimitation. Maintaining the present 
quota of 120 licences may have the following effects: 

 There is currently only one wheelchair accessible Hackney Carriage licensed. 
The needs of disabled people, particularly those who require wheelchair 
accessible vehicles and are unable to hire a hackney carriage vehicle would 
not be addressed; 

 It denies individuals who believe there is unmet demand for taxi work within 
the Borough, from the opportunity of obtaining a licence and operating their 
own business;

 It prevents growth of the hackney carriage trade in areas of development and 
need across the town; 

 It maintains the taxi trades livelihoods and ‘value’ of their vehicle licences; 
and

 An unmet demand survey would have to be undertaken in order to continue 
with a policy of limitation.

Page 63

Agenda Item 9



However, increasing the number of licences may have the following advantages:

 It enables market forces to determine the number of hackney carriages 
necessary to meet customer demand. This is particularly important in areas of 
development across the town, notably the continuing supply of contractors to  
BAE Systems and the newly established ranks;

 It increases the number of wheelchair accessible vehicles;
 It affords existing drivers (who currently hire vehicles from operators) and 

others, the opportunity to own and operate their own vehicles;
 It would provide an opportunity for more innovative ways of delivering taxi 

services, which meet customer needs; and
 It follows Best Practice Guidelines; 

The Office of Fair Trading suggest the following benefits to consumers:  

 Increase the supply and choice of taxis and reduced passenger waiting times;
 Make journeys safer - reducing the need for illegal taxis where neither the 

driver nor vehicle have been subject to appropriate quality and safety checks. 
 Promotes best practice in LAs’ application of quality and safety controls; and
 Protects people in vulnerable situations from overcharging, while encouraging 

the benefits of fare competition.

From time to time, Licensing Officers receive enquiries from individuals and 
businesses, regarding applications for Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences. Since 1st 
June 2019, the Council has received one application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Licence, one pre-application enquiry from an existing private hire vehicle licence 
holder and information from a new business service who propose to operate (take 
and manage bookings) a fleet of hackney carriages. 

The local authority can refuse licences only if it can be satisfied that the there is no 
significant unmet demand. There is some uncertainty, for the reasons given above, 
that the current demand is being met in relation to the taxi provision and therefore an 
individual could challenge a decision to refuse.

Therefore, it is proposed to increase the current restriction of 120 hackney vehicle 
licences and permit any additional licences for Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles 
(WAVs) only. Members may want to satisfy themselves further and instruct the 
Reporting Officer to carried out a pilot study, to inform a decision that either 
considers: 

 A permanent delimitation based on public interest or 
 Continuing the restriction on the number of hackney carriage licences and 

undertake an Unmet Demand Survey. 

To allow for any pilot, Officers suggest a reasonable time of 6 months for this to be 
conducted (until 31st December 2019). This will allow for an assessment in both the 
Summer and Winter months, reporting back to this Committee early in January 2020. 
This study would look to address the Department of Transports key questions:

 What benefits or disadvantages arise for the public as a result of the 
continuation of controls; 

Page 64

Agenda Item 9



 What benefits or disadvantages would result for the public, if the controls were 
removed; and 

 Is there evidence that removal of the controls would result in a deterioration in 
the amount or quality of taxi service provision.

6. Options

Members are asked to use their delegation to amend any restriction or limitation and 
therefore the options available are;

 Consider a temporary delimitation of the number of hackney carriage vehicle 
licences, to enable Officers to carry out a pilot study, until 31st December 2019; 
or

 Permanently delimit the number of hackney carriage vehicle licences, as 
suggested by government guidance; or

 Consider removing the current restriction of 120 hackney vehicle licences and 
permit any additional licences for Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles (WAVs) only; 
and

 Apply a condition to all additional licences issued, requiring that the vehicle 
must be at all times a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle; and

 Instruct the Reporting Officer to prepare a further report on the findings of a pilot 
study to inform a decision that considers either, delimitation based on public 
interest, or finds it necessary, to continue restricting hackney carriage licences 
and undertake an Unmet Demand Survey.

7. Recommendation

I recommend that Members:-

1. Remove the current restriction of 120 hackney vehicle licences; and 

2. Apply a condition to all new hackney carriage vehicle licences issued, 
requiring that the vehicle must be at all times a Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle.

8. Reasons for Recommendation

a) At this time, the Council cannot satisfy itself if there is a significant unmet 
demand, due to the increasing supply of contractors to BAE Systems and 
other large scale projects within the Borough and the newly established ranks.

b) Permitting additional licences for Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles (WAVs) will 
increase the provision for individuals who are unable to transfer, and meet our 
responsibilities under the Equalities Act 2010. These legal provisions are 
intended to assist passengers in wheelchairs in their use of designated taxi 
and private hire vehicle (PHV) services. Local Authorities are advised to keep 
a list of Designated Vehicles under Section 167 of the Act.

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



c) There is currently only one Hackney Carriage licenced as a WAV. 

d) Section 47of the Local Government (Misc. Provisions) Act 1976, states:
(1) A district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage 
under the Act of 1847 such conditions as the district council may consider 
reasonably necessary.
(2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, a district 
council may require any hackney carriage licensed by them under the Act of 
1847 to be of such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks as 
shall clearly identify it as a hackney carriage.

e) Under Part 3(1) of the Constitution of the Council, the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee have the authority “To impose any condition, limitation or other 
restriction or other terms on any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration.”

f) The impact on the existing taxi trade (Hackney Carriage proprietors and 
drivers) does not out-weigh the benefit to the public and in particular 
wheelchair users.
  

g) Barrow Borough Council maintains quality controls, through an increased 
vehicle testing regime of either 2 of 3 times a year dependant upon vehicle 
age, therefore delimitation should not be a problem for hackney carriage 
services.

h) The recommendations are made in accordance with the legal restrictions 
surrounding the grant of hackney carriage licences, the Department for 
Transport’s best practice, the contents of the Law Commission’s report on Taxi 
and Private Hire Services and the Competition and Markets Authority 
published guidance on Regulation of taxis and private hire vehicles: 
understanding the impact on competition.

9. Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

Section 16 of the Transport Act 1985 Taxi licensing: control of numbers.

The provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 with respect to hackney 
carriages, as incorporated in any enactment (whenever passed), shall have 
effect –

(a) as if in section 37, the words “such number of” and “as they think fit” were 
omitted; and

(b) as if they provided that the grant of a licence may be refused, for the 
purpose of limiting the number of hackney carriages in respect of which 
licences are granted, if, but only if, the person authorised to grant licences is 
satisfied that there is no significant demand for the services of hackney 
carriages (within the area to which the licence would apply) which is unmet.

Page 66

Agenda Item 9



As a result of this, the local authority can only refuse to grant a hackney 
carriage vehicle licence if they are satisfied that there is ‘no significant demand 
for the services of hackney carriages which is unmet’.

The Department for Transport guidance dated 2010 states they consider best 
practice is not to restrict the numbers of hackney carriage licences, see 
paragraphs 45 to 51 of the guidance.

Although there is no current statutory prohibition on continued numerical 
restrictions, the Council must show, if it does not follow the Department for 
Transport guidance, that it has reasonably been satisfied that there was no 
significant unmet demand.

The Licensing Authority has a statutory responsibility to promote and protect 
public safety and that economic and business considerations in determining 
policy cannot lawfully be considered. 

It is therefore lawful and reasonable, for the Committee to conclude that the 
current numerical limit on hackney carriages should either be retained, altered 
or removed entirely.

An applicant whose license is refused by the local authority may appeal to the 
Crown Court. 

(ii) Risk Assessment

Not Applicable.

(iii) Financial Implications

The independent survey fee is charged to the Hackney Carriage Vehicle 
Licence holders via the renewal of their licence.  The cost of the last survey was 
£6,400.

Should Members remove the numeric limit on the number of Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licences issued, no further Unmet Demand Surveys would be required.

(iv) Key Priorities or Corporate Aims

Not Applicable.

(v) Equality and Diversity

There are no direct issues relating to equality or diversity.

(vi) Other Human Rights 

Any action undertaken by the Council, that could have an effect upon another 
person’s human rights, must be taken having regard to the principle of 
proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with the rights of 
the community as a whole. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 9



Any action taken by the Council which affect another's' rights must be no more 
onerous than is necessary in a democratic society.  The matter set out in this 
report must be considered in light of those obligations.

(vii) Health and Well-being Implications

There are no health and well-being implications.

10. Background Papers

Department for Transport Best Practice Guidance (DfT 2010). Available from: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/21255
4/taxi-private-hire-licensingguide.pdf

Law Commission report on Taxi and Private Hire Services (2014). Available from: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/31410
6/9781474104531_web.pdf

Competition and Markets Authority (CMA 2017): Regulation of taxis and private hire 
vehicles: understanding the impact on competition. Available from:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-hire-and-hackney-carriage-
licensing-open-letter-to-local-authorities/regulation-of-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles-
understanding-the-impact-on-competition

Wheelchair access in taxis and private hire vehicles – Statutory Guidance (2017) 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf 

Page 68

Agenda Item 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/212554/taxi-private-hire-licensingguide.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/212554/taxi-private-hire-licensingguide.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/314106/9781474104531_web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/314106/9781474104531_web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/314106/9781474104531_web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/314106/9781474104531_web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-hire-and-hackney-carriage-licensing-open-letter-to-local-authorities/regulation-of-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles-understanding-the-impact-on-competition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-hire-and-hackney-carriage-licensing-open-letter-to-local-authorities/regulation-of-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles-understanding-the-impact-on-competition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/private-hire-and-hackney-carriage-licensing-open-letter-to-local-authorities/regulation-of-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles-understanding-the-impact-on-competition
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/593350/access-for-wheelchair-users-taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles.pdf

	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Application for a One Day 'Event' Street Trading Consent
	Appendix 1 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 2 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 3 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 4 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 4 (2) Beer Truck
	Appendix 5 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 6 (Beer Truck)
	Appendix 6 (Beer Truck) (2)

	8 Applications for Street Collection Permits
	Appendix 1 (Permits)
	Appendix 2 (Permits)
	Appendix 3 (Permits)
	STREET COLLECTION REGULATIONS


	9 Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licences



